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         THIS ADDENDUM MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED. 
 

THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BECOME A PART OF THIS SOLICITATION. 
 

Amend BD1806, Time and Attendance, dated April 4, 2017 as follows: 
 
WE HAVE MODIFIED OUR LICENSE COUNTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. We are adjusting the number of employees, guest teachers, and managers we would 
like our pricing to be based upon   

a. Employees – 16,000 (down from 20,000, and includes guest teachers) 
b. Guest Teachers – 1,300 
c. Managers – 2,000 (down from 8,000) 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE WE HAVE ADJUSTED OUR SCHEDULE OF EVENTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Due to the number of questions received regarding the DPS Time and Attendance RFP 
and the tight turnaround time for required proposal submission, DPS has decided to 
extended the RFP submission deadline from 5/1/2017 to 5/15/2017.  In order to 
minimize delays on the overall implementation timeframe, subsequent activity 
timeframes have shifted. 
 

Milestone Previous Date Amended Date 

Deadline for Vendors to submit proposal May 1, 2017 3pm 
MST 

May 15, 2017 12:00pm 
MST 

Notification of finalists for oral 
presentations 

May 12, 2017 May 31, 2017 

Virtual initial/sales demos  June 12 - 16, 2017 

Deadline to provide access to demo 
site/sandbox 

May 21, 2017 June 16, 2017 

On site oral presentations June 12-16, 2017 June 26 - 28, 2017 

Notification of award July 2017 July 2017 

 
 
 

 
Strategic Sourcing Department 

780 Grant St.   
Denver, Colorado 80203 

 
                        ADDENDUM NUMBER BD1806A2 
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BELOW ARE ALL THE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS RECEIVED: 
 

Question Answer 

Please confirm the total number of employees who 

will be tracked on the system is 20,000? 

The District would like to adjust the quote for number of 

potential users. We would like the initial pricing to be for 

16,000 end users with pricing options on each additional 

block of 500 employees.  

Please confirm the total number of 

supervisors/managers/administrators who will need 

access to the system to make approvals or edits, or 

run reports is 8,000? 

The district would like to adjust the quote for the number of 
potential managers. We would like the initial pricing to be 
for 2,000 managers with pricing options on each additional 
block of 100 managers.  

Does the District prefer a Customer Hosted solution 

(installed on the Districts servers), or a Vendor Hosted 

solution (Cloud Based installed on our servers)? 

The district prefers a Vendor Hosted Solution, but will 

accept pricing for a Customer Hosted Solution.  

How many time clocks should we include with our 

response? 

The district currently uses 44 clocks, a vendor may use 

that amount as the basis for the number of time clocks 

required. The district is also open to adjusting the need 

based on the vendor’s ability to provide alternatives to 

traditional time clocks that would meet the district's needs.  

Is the preference for card swipe or for biometric 

clocks? 

Card swipe is preferred for most users who will be 

requiring a time clock. 

If Card Swipe does the District have iCLASS proximity 

cards? or Indalla proximity cards? Or just standard 

Proximity Cards? 

The district badge access is provided by Open Options 

Access Technology. The specific product used is 

dnaFusion.  

Is it desired for the time clocks to communicate by 

standard Ethernet? Wireless? Or POE? 

We prefer the clocks communicate via ethernet. 

Is the functionality desired for employees to fill out an 

FMLA case electronically while having the system go 

through a series of workflow to identify if they are 

eligible for FMLA. and if eligible sending the request 

over to a manager for approval, then sending out 

automatic alerts when the employee is due back from 

FMLA leave or running out of FMLA time? 

Yes, that is the desire for functionality of the FMLA Leave 

module. This is an optional module for the district.  

Will Advanced scheduling be needed as part of the 

scope of work for this project? Advanced scheduling is 

defined as: When a shift needs to be filled… the system 

will suggest the most qualified/available people to fill 

that shift to the supervisor creating the schedule? 

The district is interested in this functionality for certain 

user groups as a "nice to have" or optional add on. If this 

module would be an extra cost please break this cost out as 

separate so the district can weigh the benefits to those user 

groups vs. the cost of the option.  However, the District 

does have a need for Substitute Teacher finding features. If 

advanced scheduling is the only module that can 

accommodate that kind of activity please indicate that or 

tell us how you plan on integrating with the current 

SmartFind Express tool used by the district. 

If so should advanced scheduling be licensed for all 

20,000 employees? 

No. Advance scheduling is a "nice to have" or optional add 

on. If this module would be an extra cost please break this 

license cost out so the district can weigh the benefits to 

those user groups vs. the cost of the option. 



Addendum #BD1806A2   Page 3 of 9 

Will employees need the ability to log in online and 

swap shifts? 

This is desired but not required.  

Will employees need to punch in/out at a time clock, 

computer or smart phone? 

The district would like to use a combination of approaches, 

some employees will need time clocks (e.g. transportation 

employees), some employees will need a kiosk (e.g. 

facilities and food service (POS clock in), some employees 

may benefit from phone entry (IVR or Cisco IP phone), 

and some employees use smartphones. Please note that not 

all employees will be clocking in and out, only hourly 

employees. 

Will employees need to use Phone Entry (IVR) to dial a 

1-800 phone number to punch in/out? 

The district would like to use a combination of approaches, 

some employees will need time clocks (e.g. transportation 

employees), some employees will need a kiosk (e.g. 

facilities and food service (POS clock in), some employees 

may benefit from phone entry (IVR or Cisco IP phone), 

and some employees use smartphones. Please note that not 

all employees will be clocking in and out, only hourly 

employees. 

Is it desired for employees to dial a 1-800 number to 

dial out sick which will then prompt the system to find 

the most qualified/available staff to fill the shift? 

This functionality is desired as an option for employees 

other than teachers to dial out sick which then triggers 

notification to their supervisor they are out sick.  

Although, the functionality of finding the most 

qualified/available staff to fill the shift is desires as an 

option for teacher through the SmartFind Express (or 

similar application) functionality. 

Will smart find express continue to be used for 

substitutes? Or is it expected that the new time and 

attendance system handle the advanced scheduling 

needs for all substitutes? 

The district is asking that the vendor either integrate with 

SmartFind Express, or replace this functionality with their 

own tool. 

If the new time and attendance system is to replace 

Smart Find Express how many substitutes will need to 

be licensed for advanced scheduling? 

There are currently 1300 substitutes in the district. 

Our standard contract term is 5 years. Is the District 

able to commit to a 5 year contract term? 

Yes, this contract will start mid-2017 and be in effect until 

December 31, 2022.  

Do we refer to a requirement in the appendix from one 

of the tabs mentioned in Section III or do we identify 

the tab in the comment corresponding to the 

requirement in an appendix? 

Please complete the appendix drop down indicating your 

ability to meet the requirement and, if needed, refer to the 

tab in the response where this item is addressed using the 

comments box.  

Is previous integraton with your accounting/payroll 

software and your absence software a requirement 

or a needed prerequisite for the Vendor? 

It is strongly requested, and, if this has not occurred in the 

past, the district would expect integration costs with the 

Lawson systems to be paid for by the vendor since they 

will be developing IP in the process.  

Based on how we interpreted the instructions it looks as 

if both Appendix A and Appendix B should be 

included in Tab D. please confirm if that is accurate? 

You are correct.  

On the Cover Sheet located on page 3… there are two 

lines on the bottom right of this page. “Approved By” 

No, these lines are for the vendor to complete.  
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and “Reviewed By”… are the vendors to leave those 2 

lines blank? 

Is it desired for Smart Find to integrate teachers leave 

along with substitute assignments to the timekeeping 

and attendance system to provide as a single handshake 

with Lawson? 

Yes, the district would like to integrate teachers 

leave/absences along with substitute assignments to the 

timekeeping and attendance system. 

Will Lawson be the system of record for the leave 

balances, while feeding the time and attendance 

system for viewing and request purposes? Or will 

the desired time and attendance system calculate the 

leave hours based on the rules of Denver Public 

Schools? 

The district will continue to use Infor's Absence 

Management Module (LP) to calculate leave hours based 

on DPS rules. We would want a real time to two way feed 

of the time and attendance balances and requests. 

However, If the vendor believes the solution would benefit 

from a vendor specific absence management module, the 

District would like separate pricing to be able to determine 

if the benefits of this addition outweigh the costs.  

Is 20000 the desired amount of employees that will use 

the time and attendance system for leave requests and 

timekeeping? (For clarity, our system does not charge 

for those utilizing the system for management or 

administrative purposes. We wanted to make sure we 

don’t charge for too many licenses if this number 

includes those staff just utilizing the system for 

management or administrative purposes only). Please 

clarify. 

The District would like to adjust the quote for number of 

potential users. We would like the initial pricing to be for 

16,000 end users with pricing options on each additional 

block of 500 employees.  

Does the employee count of 20000 include substitutes 

(We would typically average out your weekly 

substitute usage rather than charging for each and every 

substitute that you might “possibly” use). Please 

clarify. 

The District would like to adjust the qoute for number of 

potential users. We would like the initial pricing to be for 

16,000 end users with pricing options on each additional 

block of 500 employees. The 16,000 employee count 

includes approximately 1,300 Guest Teachers. 

Is it desired to validate their substitute assignment 

against their time actually worked in the time and 

attendance program? 

The district is asking that the vendor either integrate with 

SmartFind Express, or replace this functionality with their 

own tool. Currently, SmartFind Express stores their 

assignment and time that should be paid to employee. 

Will substitutes be clocking through the timekeeping 

system? 

The district is asking that the vendor either integrate with 

SmartFind Express, or replace this functionality with their 

own tool.  

Are there any certified exempt employees that would 

need to leverage the system for reporting exceptions to 

their time such as a secondary position like tutoring 

where they would receive hourly pay? 

The district has exempt employees that will leverage the 

system for reporting exceptions but also work a secondary 

position that will be hourly and time worked will need to 

be captured and paid. 

Are there any hourly/classified employees that are 

treated as exempt in Lawson, where their pay is spread 

equally over 12 months but only work 9 or 10? Or do 

you pay them for time worked in the pay period it 

occurs? 

The district pays all hourly employees for time worked 

based on a pay period. Any employee who works 9 or 10 

and paid over 12 months are all salaried. 

Are your bus drivers guaranteed an amount of time per 

route even if they finish it early? 

The district does have guaranteed hours for bus drivers by 

the day not per route. 

Per the pre bid conference call, we understand The district currently uses 44 clocks, a vendor may use 
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Denver Public Schools need for time clock devices. 

Is there any set number of devices that can be 

quoted so as to receive similar responses across the 

board from vendors? 

that amount as the basis for the number of time clocks 

required. The district is also open to adjusting the need 

based on the vendors ability to provide alternatives to 

traditional time clocks that would meet the district's needs.  

Certain employee groups need to clock in/out via a 

punch card per the RFP. Is there one preferred way 

to clock from the physical time clocks such as bar 

code, magnetic swipe, proximity, biometric, pin 

entry, or a combination? 

The district currently uses a combination of different ways 

to clock in/out and would like to continue to have that 

flexibility. We currently use swipe card with badge 

number or manually punch in badge number at the time 

clock.  

Are there any credentials being leveraged today for 

access control such as proximity (rfid) cards, or id 

cards with a magnetic stripe or bar code the 

employees utilize today that could be applied for use 

with the time clock system as well? 

The district badge access is provided by Open Options 

Access Technology. The specific product used is 

dnaFusion. Proximity Badges are primarily used.  

In the requirements of the rfp, FMLA leave is referred 

to. Is it desired for the timekeeping and attendance 

system to handle FMLA case management, or is that a 

function of Lawson or other system? 

This is optional functionality that DPS is requesting, and is 

not a "must have" requirement of the system. 

Are there any employees that receive a blended or 

weighted overtime for working multiple positions with 

multiple rates of pay? 

Employees have multiple job/positions with multiple pay 

rates. We use FLSA overtime calculation in our payroll 

system to calculated weighted overtime pay. 

Are there any on call employees that are guaranteed a 

certain amount of time for a call out such as 2 hours? 

The district does have union requirements with guaranteed 

amount of time for multiple reason, including call 

out/back. 

Does Denver Public Schools allow employees to swap 

shifts, request to drop a schedule shift, etc.? 

The district doesn't currently have employees who swap 

shifts or request to drop a shift. 

Is overtime the norm for DPS employees, or is comp 

time the preferred method of overages? Does that vary 

per bargaining unit? 

This district pay overtime for any non-exempt employee 

who works over 40 hours within the established work 

week. The district does not have a comp time plan. 

Are there some employees with multiple positions that 

will fall under the jurisdiction of multiple approvers for 

their time? 

Yes, the district has some employees who work in multiple 

position, who have different rates, different expensing, 

different unions, and multiple approvers. 

Does the district want the time and attendance system 

to restrict an employee from requesting time off if their 

current balance does not support it? Or is it preferred to 

alert the employee and the supervisor of the situation, 

to be able to make a well informed decision on 

approval? 

Currently the district doesn't have a restriction or process 

to restrict an employee from requesting time off that their 

current balance does not support. Having this option would 

be a "Nice to have" and not a requirement.  

Does the district desire to utilize a mobile app for 

those employees on the go, while leveraging geo 

fencing to ensure the employees location? 

Yes, the district would want to ensure employees location 

through geo fencing, when mobile app is utilized. 

Is it a desire of the district to utilize any biometric 

verification of employees via mobile app, computer 

clocking, or from the physical time clock? 

Card swipe is preferred for most users who will be 

requiring a time clock. 

Is grant tracking or project/work order tracking a 

desired component of the time and attendance system? 

The district is interested in this functionality for certain 

user groups as a "nice to have" or optional add on. If this 

module would be an extra cost please break this cost out as 
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separate so the district can weigh the benefits to those user 

groups vs. the cost of the option.   

What are the workstation platforms and browsers 

on which the sandbox will run at DPS? 

The sandbox environment instructions will be provided to 

the top 3 finalists for the Round 2 sandbox and demo. The 

sandbox environment will be conducted via personal PC's 

and should allow for the district to experiment with 

administration activities, leave requesting activities and 

non-clock time reporting methods. There is a preference 

for web based access for the sandbox. There will also be 

demo scripts provided for a follow up demo that will 

contain requests to view the clocking methods.  

We are assuming that the functions in the user 

stories in the RFP are those you require to be 

supported in the sandbox. Will additional scripts or 

specifications be provided upon finalist notification? 

The sandbox environment instructions will be provided to 

the top 3 finalists for the Round 2 sandbox and demo. The 

sandbox environment will be conducted via personal PC's 

and should allow for the district to experiment with 

administration activities, leave requesting activities and 

non-clock time reporting methods. The user stories are a 

great place to pull examples to allow the district to begin 

understanding how the tool works. There will also be 

demo scripts provided for a follow up demo that will 

contain requests to view the clocking methods.  

Our best practice is to provide onsite support for 

the first day or two of a sandbox. Is this acceptable 

to DPS? 

The sandbox environment instructions will be provided to 

the top 3 finalists for the Round 2 sandbox and demo. 

Determination of the sandbox needs and any type of site 

visits can be determined once the finalists are selected.  

How many users for each user story will be required 

for the sandbox? 

There will likely be 25 individuals who will need access to 

the sandbox environment. 

May we assume a nightly refresh of the sandbox 

data to make the user experience consistent over the 

life of the sandbox? 

This will likely be acceptable. Additionally noting that the 

sandbox portion will only be required of the top 3 vendors 

selected for the round 2 evaluation.  

Are there processes that need to be completed to 

attach a vendor supplied device (e.g., a time clock) 

to the DPS network for the sandbox?  

The sandbox environment instructions will be provided to 

the top 3 finalists for the Round 2 sandbox and demo. The 

sandbox environment will be conducted via personal PC's 

and should allow for the district to experiment with 

administration activities, leave requesting activities and 

non-clock time reporting methods. The user stories are a 

great place to pull examples to allow the district to begin 

understanding how the tool works. There will also be 

demo scripts provided for a follow up demo that will 

contain requests to view the clocking methods.  

How many time clock/terminals should be 

considered within the cost proposal? Or, should 

vendors provide a per unit cost? 

The district currently uses 44 clocks, a vendor may use 

that amount as the basis for the number of time clocks 

required. The district is also open to adjusting the need 

based on the vendor’s ability to provide alternatives to 

traditional time clocks that would meet the district's needs.  

How many employees are impacted by the following 

requirement? How often do new grants or projects 

get added? (GE10, Ability to allocate time across a 

This is an optional solution for the District and would be a 

part of a longer term role out. Please provide pricing for an 

initial 1,000 employees and pricing for additional blocks 
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project time card (e.g. DoTS resources to allocate 

time to different projects, or itinerant employees 

who work at multiple schools, and employees who 

are grant funded)) 

of 100.  

1. We noticed that there are multiple instances in which 

Denver Public Schools request or requires some level 

of interfacing/integration with outside platforms. We 

would like to dig deeper into this interfacing 

requirement/request:  

a. Are the following systems the only interfaces you are 

requesting?  

i. DPS internal system  

ii. IMB TRIRIGA  

iii. Smart Find Express  

iv. Payroll - Peoplesoft  

b. In addition, please provide more details about what 

information would be optimally exchanged with these 

outside systems, and how often. For example, regarding 

question GE7 on the “General-Other” tab of Appendix 

A, it is unclear what information needs to be exchanged 

and approximately how often this system needs to be 

updated (ie: real time, once/day, etc.). An example 

scenario of how this feature will be used may help.  

The exact nature of data exchanges is still to be defined as 

part of the initial planning phase with DPOS and the 

Vendor. The below interfaces are known, but others may 

be required as the planning and development occur.  

1. Infor Lawson GHR - Receive employee information and 

needed demographics. 

2. Infor Lawson S3/Contracts Module - The Time and 

Attendance System will be sending this information to the 

Lawson S3 Payroll module and the Contracts Module 

depending on the employee type.  

3. IBM Tririga System (Optional) - This system is used for 

work order tracking in the facilities department and there 

is some desire to track an individual's time to each work 

order.  

4. Smart Find Express - This will be the system that will 

request substitutes and will need to interface employee 

data and time records for substitutes and time off records 

for teachers.  

5. Payroll - Peoplesoft - DPS does not use Peoplesoft, but 

uses the Lawson Contracts Module and Lawson 

Payroll.Module.  

 

Certain data will be required at a very frequent interval, 

and the exact frequency of each interface will be 

determined during the planning phase of the project when 

a vendor is chosen and the functional design is being 

completed.  

Question GE4 from the “General-Other” tab of 

Appendix A asks that the system be compatible with 

existing card readers – what type of card reader is 

currently being used? (Proximity, magnetic, bar code, 

etc.). Will the existing badges be used also?  

The District uses proximity cards provided by the Open 

Options Access company using the dnaFusion product. 

Question TI 12.1 on the “Tech, Infrastructure, SI” tab 

of Appendix B states seamless integration with a web 

analytics tool is required. Please provide more 

information about what analytics your organization is 

looking for. 

This is primarily reporting to track user hits of the 

application. 

Question TI 12.2 on the same tab as the previous 

question requires click-through analytics across the 

entire application for user tracking; please elaborate on 

the level of click-through analytics that is required and 

whether or not a 3rd party click/heat mapping vendor is 

acceptable. 

We required drill-down style reports to replace existing 

reports we have in some of our current time and attendance 

systems such as our substitute teacher system. 

Would DPS like the implementation fees to be 

financed at 0% over the 5 year contract with fees 

The district would prefer not to finance the system 

implementation.  
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not to begin until go-live? 

You mention in the RFP the purpose of potentially 

making system changes. Can you provide more detail 

on the issues you are experiencing and want to fix?  

o Improve the user experience for Employees and 

Payroll Secretaries  

o Increase the efficiency of the payroll process to 

reduce redundant process steps  

o Reduce errors by improving the data entry process  

o Improve the system availability and total “up time” 

The current systems require a significant amount of 

manual data entry which creates room for error. The user 

interface on the current solutions is not intuitive and is 

difficult to navigate for some users. There are also 

technical challenges to the current system that do not allow 

individuals to enter time at the same time as employee 

status /demographic changes are occurring (i.e. the time 

entry system is not available at all times throughout the 

month). There are other improvements we hope to make as 

indicated in the RFP.  

What issues are being caused by having different 

systems for Time and Absence?  

The multiple time entry systems result in a lot of manual 

data entry by end users, creates control risk of duplicate 

payments, and results in end user confusion on the sources 

of their pay.  

Are there other issues you would like to see improved 

with the Absence module? 

Not at this time.  

Are substitutes able to access the current time system? They do not.  

How many substitutes does DPS currently have?  The districts has 1300 substitutes. 

If the only information we plan to redact is the pricing 

document, can we just provide that redacted Appendix 

as a printout and on thumb drive rather than a complete 

separate response? 

We require a full bid response for the redacted copy. 

When/if we have a CORA request, we will send a copy of 

your electronic redacted response. 

How many clocks and types? Do you own the 

clocks? 

The district currently uses and own 44 clocks.  

There are a number of similar active Public Sector 

RFPs in the State of Colorado and elsewhere in the 

US that are currently being responded to by several 

of the companies that will likely respond to this RFP 

as well. Additionally, the short time between posting 

answers to questions from the Pre-Proposal 

Conference and the response deadline (six business 

days) will present significant challenges in 

integrating those answers into the RFP response, 

final editing, proposal approvals, printing and 

shipping. DPS deserves the best effort and response 

from all respondents. As such, we believe it is in the 

District’s best interest to please extend the RFP 

response date to May 15, 2017. 

The timeline for this RFP was established in accordance 

with the standard DPS process. However due to the tight 

turnaround times and number of questions submitted, the 

district has revised the timeline for the RFP process. The 

RFP submission date will now be May 15, 2017 as 

described in the amendment to this RFP. Please note that 

other dates have shifted, but the final notification of award 

is the same. 

Would this be for a specified time no matter what 

time the employee logged time? (CL3. Ability for 

employees to clock in and out form locations outside 

of the district (e.g., off-site trainings or retreats) 

The district has employees who attend off-site training 

and/or retreats. Hourly employees need to have the ability 

to clock in/out while doing district work or business. The 

time at the training/retreat is a specific time during that 

day. 

How important is the IVR option vs the other input 

methods?  

The district would like to use a combination of approaches, 

some employees will need time clocks (e.g. transportation 
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employees), some employees will need a kiosk (e.g. 

facilities and food service (POS clock in), some employees 

may benefit from phone entry (IVR or Cisco IP phone), 

and some employees use smartphones. Please note that not 

all employees will be clocking in and out, only hourly 

employees. 

 
 
Due date and time: May 15, 2017 
12:00 p.m. local standard time 
at 780 Grant Street,  
Denver, CO 80203 
 
If your proposal has been submitted and you wish to amend it, please modify your proposal on 
company letterhead.  The amended proposal must be received prior to the time and date set for 
the proposal opening.  Each modification submitted to the District's Strategic Sourcing Office 
located at 780 Grant Street, must have Vendor’s name and return address and the applicable 
RFP number and title of the RFP clearly marked on the face of the envelope. 
 
If more than one modification is submitted, the modification bearing the latest date of receipt by 
the District's Strategic Sourcing Office will be considered the valid modification. 
 
This addendum must be acknowledged, whether or not you amend your proposal. 
 
 

PRINT OR TYPE YOUR INFORMATION 

Name of Company: ____________________________________________ Fax: _____________ 

Address: ________________________ City/State: ________________ Zip: ______________ 

Contact Person: ___________________ Title: _____________________ Phone: ___________ 

Authorized Representative’s Signature: ____________________________ Phone: ___________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ Title: _____________________ Date: _____________ 

 Approved by: ______________ Date: _____________ 

 Reviewed by: ______________ Date: _____________ 

 


